
Addendum 1- Request for Proposals- Payroll Services 

 

Questions and Answers 

 

1. Are also looking for Time and Attendance capabilities or will the City continue to use 

MUNIS for that function?  

The Town will continue to use MUNIS. 

 

2. What employee population will be using the time and attendance? 

Currently non-union and clerical staff use time and attendance. Staff are only required to 

enter their time for days off (vacation, personal, sick, jury duty). If no days are taken in a 

pay period they do not need to do anything. 

 

3. Town or School employees? 

Town only at this time. 

 

4. What roles do they fulfill for the town of North Andover? 

The roles for users that utilize our employee self service system (MUNIS) to enter their 

time off are non-union employees and most clerical union employees, with the exception 

of Library staff clerical union employees 

 

5. If Town employees, does this include police and fire? 

Police and Fire have their own time and attendance reporting systems which upload 

directly into Munis.  

 

6. Any attendance policies we should be aware of? 

No. Everything needed is contained in MUNIS 

 

7. Any Leave policies we should be aware of? 

No. Everything needed is contained in MUNIS. 

 

8. Any scheduling / staffing requirements? 

No. Everything needed is contained in MUNIS 

 

9. If Police and Fire do they have 24 hour schedules? 

Fire has a 24 hour schedule. Police does not. 

 

10. Shift premiums? Percentage or flat rate? 

Shift rates are rolled into their base rates (Police and Fire) along with other differentials 

such as Defib, Education, Longevity. 

 

11. Please describe when shift premiums apply. 

 Every payroll usually contains some sort of shift premium.  There are also some yearly 

stipends that are entered into MUNIS. 

 



12. Clocking in and out, what methodology do you use today? Clocks, Mobile, Tablet, Desk 

Top or all of them? 

The town uses a desk top based system (MUNIS).  

 

If Clocks, number of terminals required. n/a 

 

13. Communications methodology for the clock terminals? Example ethernet, WIFI  

n/a 

 

14. If badge technology what type, HID proximity, Magnetic strip, Barcode or Bio-metric? 

n/a 

 

15. Any specific time rules that we should be aware of? 

The work week is from Sunday - Saturday 

 

16. If it’s possible, please provide any handbooks or attendance policies that you might have 

available. 

See collective bargaining agreements and personnel policy at this link: 

https://www.northandoverma.gov/home/pages/documents-and-records 

 

 

17. Please provide the percentage (or number) of employees on direct deposit vs. live 

paychecks for both the Town and School employees. 

 

Direct deposit is required for all Town employees and School teachers.  The town has one 

active employee who receives a check. The school has approximately 37 employees who 

receive physical checks.  There are 80 coaches for the schools that are not on direct 

deposit and they are paid 3 times per year and the number of checks at that time could 

vary. The tow has a couple of election workers that are not on direct deposit. They are 

paid up to 4 times a year, depending on the year.  

 

 

18. Any specific functionality requirements would you need for optional Human Resources/ 

Miscellaneous? 

No. That line item on the price proposal is deleted.  Please see attached revised price 

proposal form.  

 

19. Are you open to using Ceridian Dayforce for your employee self service or is Munis the 

 only option? 

 MUNIS is the only option 

20. With Covid restrictions we need to know if the 4 day minimum in person training is a 

 must? 

 All trainings must be in compliance with COVID restrictions in the State of 

 Massachusetts in effect at the time of the training. 

  

https://www.northandoverma.gov/home/pages/documents-and-records


21.  In regards to qualifications it states to list 10 municipalities, 3 Mass based. If we do not 

 have this is it an automatic disqualification? 

 A proposer must meet all minimum qualifications in order for the proposal to be 

 evaluated.  

  



 

APPENDIX A - PRICE PROPOSAL 

 

This form will be used by the Proposer as their Price Proposal, for the purposes of compliance 

with Chapter 30B of the Massachusetts General Laws.  Proposers must fill out this form in its 

entirety and submit it in a separate envelope marked as their Price Proposal per instructions 

contained in this RFP. For each service, include Rate/Monthly Estimated Volume/Total Estimate 

Calculations (may be submitted on separate sheet). If there is a minimum charge, it must be stated. 

Town will pay only for Services rendered under each service. 

 
PAYROLL 
Processing Charge:        $_______________ 
Employee Count –  Town: 243 
   Schools: 924      $_______________ 
 
Direct Deposit Transfers        $_______________ 
 
TAX SERVICE TYPE: FULL 
Federal and First State ID       $_______________ 
 
EMPLOYEE SELF-SERVICE (ONLINE)      $_______________ 
 
DELIVERY SERVICES: Next Day Courier     $_______________ 
 
ANNUAL CHARGES:        
 
W-2’s/1099M’s         $_______________ 
 
1094C/1095C Forms Filing       $_______________ 
 
ONE TIME IMPLEMENTATION CHARGES, if applicable 
Specify service: Installation/Setup Fee      $_______________ 
Specify service:___________________________________   $_______________ 
Specify service:___________________________________   $_______________ 
 
OPTION: AFFORDABLE CARE ACT (ACA) SERVICES, if provided  $_______________ 
 
OPTION: INCLUDE TIME AND ATTENDANCE FOR 500   $_______________ 

 
 
TOTAL PRICE PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACT TERM until 6/30/22   ....    $__________________ 
 
Renewal Option 1 – 7/1/22 to 6/30/23 ....................................................... $__________________ 
 
Renewal Option 2 – 7/1/23 to 6/30/24 ....................................................... $__________________ 
 

 


